


II. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

2.1. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), issuance of this CAFO 

commences this proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of 

this CAFO becomes effective. 

2.2. The Administrator has delegated the authority to sign consent agreements 

between EPA and the party against whom a Class II penalty is proposed to be assessed pursuant 

to Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), to the Regional Administrator of EPA 

Region 10, who has redelegated this authority to the Director of the Office of Compliance and 

Enforcement, EPA Region 10 ("Complainanf'). 

2.3. Part III of this CAFO contains a concise statement of the factual and legal basis 

for the alleged violations of the CW A together with the specific provisions of the CWA and the 

implementing regulations that Respondents are alleged to have violated. 

III. ALLEGATIONS 

3.1. Section 301 (a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 13 ll(a), prohibits the discharge of 

pollutants into waters of the United States by any person, except as authorized by a permit issued 

pursuant to Section 402 or 404 of the Act, 33 U.S .C. § 1342 or 1344. Each discharge of 

pollutants from a point source that is not authorized by such a permit constitutes a violation of 

Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a). 

3.2. Respondents are "persons" within the meaning of Sections 301 (a) and 502(5) of 

the Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 (a) and 1362(5). 

3.3. Since 2011, Respondents have owned, possessed, or controlled approximately 

1.24 acres of real property located at 5230 Shaune Drive (City and Borough of Juneau Parcel No. 
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5B1201030040; SSG IV Tract F) in Juneau, Alaska. This property is hereinafter referred to as 

the '·Site'· and is depicted in the aerial photograph attached as Exhibit A. 

3.4. At the time of the unauthorized activity described below, the Site contained 

approximately 0.3 to 0.6 acres of wetlands within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 and 33 

C.F.R. § 328.3. These wetlands meet the criteria for jurisdictional wetlands in the 1987 "Federal 

Manual for Identifying and Delineating Jurisdictional Wetlands." 

3.5. The Site's wetlands are "adjacent," within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 and 

33 C.F.R. § 328.3, to the headwaters of Vanderbilt Creek, a State of Alaska catalogued 

anadromous fish stream (Stream No. 111-40-10125). In addition, Vanderbilt Creek is listed by 

the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation ("ADEC") as water quality limited for 

sediments, turbidity, debris, and habitat modification. Vanderbilt Creek flows to the Gastineau 

Channel, a "water of the United States" as defined in 33 C.F.R. § 328.3(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 

and therefore a "navigable water"' as defined in CW A Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). 

Consequently, Vanderbilt Creek and adjacent wetlands impacted by the alleged unauthorized 

discharges described in paragraph 3.6 below, are "waters of the United States" within the 

meaning of 33 C.F.R. §§ 328.3(5) and (7) and 40 C.F.R. § 232.2, and therefore "navigable 

waters'" as defined in CWA Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § I 362(7). 

3.6. From approximately November 2013 to October 2014, Respondents and/or 

persons acting on their behalf, used heavy earthmoving equipment, such as an excavator, 

bulldozer and dump truck, to mechanically harvest and clear the Site and place approximately 

1,000 to 2,000 cubic yards of fill material into wetlands on the Site for construction and 

expansion of a gravel pad to store heavy equipment, and construction and other materials. The 

fill remains in place as of the date of this Order. 
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3.7. The heavy earthmoving equipment referenced in Paragraph 3.6 is a "point source" 

within the meaning of Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). 

3.8. The dredged and/or fill materials that Respondents and/or persons acting on their 

behalf caused to be discharged, as referenced in Paragraph 3.6, included dirt, rock, gravel and 

silt, each of which constitutes ·'fill material"' within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 and each of 

which constitutes a .. pollutant'· within the meaning of Section 502(6) of the CW A. 33 U.S.C. 

§ 1362(6). 

3.9. By causing such dredged and/or fill materials to enter waters of the United States, 

Respondents engaged in the "discharge of pollutants" from a point source within the meaning of 

Sections 30l(a) and 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a) and 1362(12). 

3.10. Respondents' discharges of dredged and/or fill materials described in Paragraph 

3.6 above were not authorized by any permit issued pursuant to Section 404 of the CWA, 33 

U.S.C. § 1344. Respondents are therefore in violation of Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 131 l(a). 

3.11. Each day the dredged and/or fill material remains in place without the required 

permit constitutes an additional day of violation of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 131 l(a). 

3.12. In accordance with Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), 

and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, Respondents are liable for the administrative assessment of civil penalties 

for violations at the Site in an amount not to exceed $16,000 per day for each day during which 

the violation continues, up to a maximum of $177,500. 
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IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT 

4.1. For the purpose of this proceeding, Respondents admit the jurisdictional 

allegations of this CAFO. 

4.2. Respondents neither admit nor deny the specific factual allegations contained in 

this CAFO. 

4.3. As required by Section 309(g)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(3), EPA has 

taken into account the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the alleged violations as well 

as Respondents' economic benefit of noncompliance, ability to pay, and other relevant factors. 

After considering all of these factors, EPA has determined and Respondents agree that an 

appropriate penalty to settle this action is $12,500. 

4.4. Respondents agree to pay the total civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3 within 

six months of the effective date of the Final Order contained in Part V of this CAFO. The six 

month payment schedule is warranted based on Respondents· Certification on Payment of 

Penalty and Undue Financial Hardship (Exhibit B). 

4.5. Payment under this CAFO must be made by a cashier's check or certified check 

payable to the order of "Treasurer, United States of America" and delivered to the following 

address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

Respondents must note on the check the title and docket number of this action. 
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4.6. Respondents must serve photocopies of the check described in Paragraph 4.5 on 

the Regional Hearing Clerk and EPA Region 10 at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
R~gion 10, Mail Stop ORC-1 13 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 
Seattle, WA 98101 

Mark S. Jen 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Alaska Operations Office 
222 W. Seventh Avenue #19 
Anchorage, AK 99513-7588 

4.7. If Respondents fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by its due 

date, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due and 

owing. Such failure may also subject Respondents to a civil action to collect the assessed 

penalty under the CW A, together with interest, fees, costs, and additional penalties described 

below. In any collection action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of the penalty shall 

not be subject to review. 

4.7.1. Interest. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 13 l 9(g)(9), any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a rate 

established by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(l) from the 

effective date of the Final Order set fo1th in Part V, provided however, that no interest 

shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within six months of 

the effective date of the Final Order. 

4.7.2. Attorneys Fees, Collection Costs, Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 

Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(9), if Respondents fail to pay on a 

timely basis the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3, Respondents shall pay (in addition to 

any assessed penalty and interest) attorneys fees and costs for collection proceedings and 

a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such failure to pay persists. 
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Such nonpayment penalty shall be in an amount equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of 

Respondents' penalties and nonpayment penalties which are unpaid as of the beginning of 

such quarter. 

4.8. The penalty described in Paragraph 4.3 , including any additional costs incurred 

under Paragraph 4.7, above, represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall 

not be deductible for purposes of federal taxes. 

4.9. The undersigned representative of Respondents certifies that he is authorized to 

enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to bind Respondents to this document. 

4.10. Except as described in Subparagraph 4. 7 .2, above, each party shall bear its own 

costs in bringing or defending this action. 

4.11 . Respondents expressly waive any right to contest the allegations and waive any 

right to appeal the Final Order set forth in Part V. 

4.12. The provisions of this CAFO shall bind Respondents and their agents, servants, 

employees, successors, and assigns. 
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4.13. The above provisions are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon by Respondents 

and EPA Region I 0. 

DATED: 

'1- 1<:,-;7 

DATED: 

DATED: 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

GENER. CHEESEMAN, Individual 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

~:d1-
GENER. CIIEESEMAN, Member/Manager 
GR CHEESEMAN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

FOR COMPLAINANT: 

~~ 
EDWARD J. KOWALSKI, Director 
Office of Compliance and Enforcement 
EPA Region I 0 
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V. FINAL ORDER 

5.1. The terms of the foregoing Parts I-IV are ratified and incorporated by reference 

into this Final Order. Respondents are ordered to comply with the terms of settlement. 

5 .2. This CAPO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties 

pursuant to the CW A for the violations alleged in Part III. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.31(a), nothing in this CAPO shall affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue 

appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law. 

This CAPO does not waive, extinguish, or otherwise affect Respondents' obligations to comply 

with all applicable provisions of the CWA and regulations promulgated or permits issued 

thereunder. 

5.3. In accordance with Section 309(g)(l) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(l), and 

40 C.F.R. § 22.38(b), the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation has been given the 

opportunity to consult with EPA regarding the assessment of the administrative civil penalty 

against Respondents. 

5.4. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(4)(A), and 

40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b ), EPA has issued public notice of and provided reasonable opportunity to 

comment on its intent to assess an administrative penalty against Respondents. More than 40 

days have elapsed since issuance of this public notice and EPA has received no petition to set 

aside the Consent Agreement contained herein. 
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EXHIBIT A 

SITE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman Construction, LLC 
5230 Shaune Drive, Juneau, Alaska 

City and Borough of Juneau Parcel No. 5B1201030040 
1.24 acres 



EXHIBITB 

Respondents' Certification on Payment of Penalty and Undue Financial Hardship 

I, Gene R. Cheeseman, individually and as the Member/Manager of GR Cheeseman 

Construction, LLC, hereby certify, under penalty of law, that, based on my current financial 

condition and the financial condition of GR Cheeseman Construction, LLC, for which J am the 

sate member and manager, the Respondents in the Ctean Water Act adminjstrative enforcement 

action with Docket No. CWA-10-2017-0069 cannot pay the civil penalty within 30 days of the 

effective date of the Final Order in the above referenced Docket No. without experiencing undue 

financial hardship. 1 am aware that there are significant pena~ties for submitting faJse 

information, including the possibility of fines and impriSQnment for knowing violations. 

DATED: 

DATED: 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

~-.. 
GENER. CHEESEMAN, Individual 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

GENER. CHEESEMAN, Member/Manager 
GR CHEESEMAN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
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Public Notice: Proposed Settlement with Gene 
R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman 
Construction LLC 

How to Comment 

Comments accepted through: 04/ 17/2017 

How to Comment 

Written comments may be sent to the Regional Hearing Clerk at the address below within 30 
days of the date of thi s notice. Be s~re to include yo ur name and address if you would like a 
response. 

Comments should reference docket number CWA-10-2017-0069 and be mailed to: 

Teresa Young, Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region I 0 (ORC-113) 
1200 Sixth A venue, Suite 900 
Seattle, Washington 9810 1-3 140 

Questions? For additional information, contact Mark Jen Uen.mark@epa.gov) at 907-271-3411. 

Publish Date: 03/ 17/2017 

Summary 

EPA is providing notice of a proposed administrative penalty settlement with Gene R. Cheeseman 
and GR Cheeseman Construction LLC (Respondents) for violations of the Clean Water Act at their 
5230 Shaune Drive property located in Juneau, Alaska. 

EPA alleges that Respondents violated Clean Water Act Section 301 (a) (33 U.S.C. 1311 (a)) by 
discharging approximately 1,000 to 2,000 cubic yards of fill material covering approximately 0.3 to 
0.6 acres of jurisdictional wetlands adjacent to the headwaters of Vanderbilt Creek without a 

https: //www.epa.gov/publicnotices/proposed-settlement-gene-r-cheeseman-and-gr-cheese. .. 3/ 17/2017 



Public Notice: Proposed Settlement with Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman Constr... Page 2 of 2 

Department of the Army Clean Water Act Section 404 (33 U.S.C. § 1344) permit. Vanderbilt Creek 

is salmon bearing stream listed as an impaired waterbody under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water 

Act. 

Under the proposed Consent Agreement and Final Order (see Related Documents below). Gene R. 

Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman Construction LLC wi ll pay a civi I penalty of $12,500. 

Legal authority 

This is a Class II administrative penalty proceeding governed by Section 309(g) (33 U.S.C. § 1319 

(g)) of the Clean Water Act and the procedural rules found at 40 Cl'R Part 21. 

The requirements that apply to public comment and participation are set forth in the Clean Water Act 

Section 309(g)(4) and 40 CFR § 22.45. 

Applicant or Respondent 

Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman Construction LLC 
3920 North Douglas Highway 
Juneau, AK 9980 I 

Related Documents 

You may need Adobe Reader to view files on this page. See EPA' s About PDF page to learn 

more. 

• Proposed Consent Agreement and 1-inal Order: Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman 

Construction LLC (PDr-) (I I pp, 185 K, March 20 17) 

Docket Number CWA- 10-20 17-0069 

LAST UPDATED ON MARCH 17, 2017 

https://www.epa.gov/publicnotices/proposed-settlement-gene-r-cheeseman-and-gr-cheese... 3/ 17/2017 



CWA Public Notice Web Request 

Public Notice Title: Proposed Penalty Against Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman 

Construction LLC for Clean Water Act Vio lations 

Summary: 
EPA is providing notice of a proposed administrative penalty to Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman 

Construction LLC (Respondents) for violations of the Clean Water Act at their 5230 Shaune Drive 

property located in Juneau, Alaska. 

EPA alleges that Respondents violated Clean Water Act Section 301(a), 33 U.S.C. 1311(a) by discharging 

approximately 1,000 to 2,000 cubic yards of fill material covering approximately 0.3 to 0.6 acres of 

jurisdictional wetlands adjacent to the headwaters of Vanderbilt Creek without a Department of the 

Army Clean Water Act Section 404, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, permit. Vanderbilt Creek is salmon bearing stream 

listed as an impaired waterbody under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act 

Under the proposed Consent Agreement and Final Order, Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman 

Construction LLC will pay a civil penalty of $12,500. 

Legal authority: 

This is a Class II administrative penalty proceeding, governed by Section 309(g). 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), of 

the Clean Water Act and the procedural rules found at 40 CFR Part 22. The requirements that apply to 

public comment and participation are set forth in Clean Water Act Section 309(g)(4) and 40 CFR § 22.45. 

Applicant or respondent: 

Gene R. Cheeseman and GR Cheeseman Construction LLC 

3920 North Douglas Highway 

Juneau, Alaska 99801 

How to comment: 
Comments accepted through: Date 

Written comments may be sent to the Regional Hearing Clerk at the address below within 30 days of the 

date of this notice. Be sure to include your name and address or email if you would like a response. 

Comments should reference docket number CWA-10-2017-0069 and be mailed or emailed to Regional 

Hearing Clerk and cc' ing staff contact below: 

Teresa Young, Regional Hearing Clerk 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Region 10 (ORC-113) 

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 

Seattle, Washington 98101-3140 



Staff Contact: 

Mark Jen 

222 West 7th Avenue, #19 

Anchorage, Alaska 99513 

907-271-3411 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 10 

Reply To: OCE-1 OJ 

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 
Seattle, Washington 98101-3140 

CERTIFIED :\J..\IL - IH::Tt 'Ri'I RECEIPT REQlTSTE D 

\Is. \lichdk H<:k 
Director. Divisiun C1f Water 

,\laska Dcpanme111 of En,·iro111111.::ntal C'onscrvntil111 

-t I 0 Willoughby ;\ venue, Sui te 303 
Juneau. Alaska 9981 J-IXOO 

Re: Gcnl! R. Cheeseman and GR Chl!CSl!man Constru~tion. U .C 

t\dm i,n)st~l~':c Order on Consent and C onsl.!nl A l!.l'el.!1111.:nl and Final Order 

111'.-~ -
D1:ar \~~le: 

This i.s LO ad,·isc )OU of'enfor(;emcnl :n:lion-; that Region 10 of the U.S. E1wironmcntal Prote1:Lion 

Agency (EP.I\) plans to initiate in thc state of Alaska. The proposed actions will address alleged 

Yinlntions of the Clean Water Act by Gene R. Chccscman and GR Ch1.:cscman Construction LLC on 

thi..:ir propi..:rly at :'230 Shaune Drin! in Juneau. Alaska. 

Please consider thi s an opportunity to pro' idc EPA Region I 0 with any comments the Alaska 

Department of I::11viro11111ental C'onscrvatil1n may have n;garding th is nttinn. 

Any comments or quc!:>tiuns you may h<l\'C n:gard ing Docket t\ umbcrs ('\\',\-10-20 I 7-00(i8 nnd 

C\\':\-10-~017-rnlfil) may be dirccted to\ I.irk kn. ul' m~ -,i:lfl. :1t (907) 27 1-3-t 11 or jcn.marktt1 cpa.go'. 

Thank yo u li>r your assis1ancc in thcsc matters. 

Endosun.:: 
I . ,\dmini -;trnt i\'c Order on Consen t 
1. Consi.:nt r\grcl!men t and Final Order 

cc w 'enc: iv1 r. M ichacl Soller 
ADl::C Water Quality Program 


